
Posted February 7,  2014 

Kelso Planning Commission  

Agenda 
Meeting at 6:00p.m. 

Tuesday, February 11, 2014 

203 South Pacific Ave., City Hall Council Chambers 
 

 
Approved/  

Agenda               Denied Remarks 

Call to Order: 

 

1. Roll Call 

 
 

 
 

Approve Minutes: 

 

1. January 14, 2014 Meeting Minutes 
 

 
 

 
 

Presentation: 
  

Public Hearing:  
 

1. Amendments to the City’s Zoning Ordinance, Title 17, by adding a 

new Chapter 17.45 Marijuana Related Land Uses.  Amendments to 

Chapter 17.08 (definitions), Chapter 17.15 (land use table) and Chapter 

17.30 (overlay zone).  Public Hearing Notice published in The Daily 

News January 29, 2014. 

 

  

Citizen Business:  
 

  

Action/Motion Items:  
 

1. Amendments to the City’s Zoning Ordinance, Title 17, by adding a 

new Chapter 17.45 Marijuana Related Land Uses.  Amendments to 

Chapter 17.08 (definitions), Chapter 17.15 (land use table) and Chapter 

17.30 (overlay zone). 

 

  

Commission Business:   
 

  

Adjournment: 

   

Next Meeting March 11, 2014 at 6:00 p.m. 

  

 

City of Kelso Community Development Department (360) 423-9922 



 

01/14/2014 Planning Commission Minutes  Page 1 of 3 

 

Kelso Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 

Tuesday, January 14, 2014 

6:00pm – 7:16pm 
 

 
Commissioners Present:    Clark Hislop, Rick VonRock, Jared Wade, James Webb 

 

Commissioners Absent:  Vacant Position No. 5, Taby Tabor, Dan Jones 

 

Staff Present:  Nancy Malone, Planning Manager; Stephanie Helem, Recording Secretary; Janean 

Parker, City Attorney; Steve Taylor, City Manager 

 
Call to Order: 

Chair Rick VonRock called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. 

 

Minutes: 

Commissioner Wade made the motion, seconded by Commissioner Webb to approve the minutes of 

November 12, 2013.  Motion carried, all in favor. 

  

Commission Business: 

  

1. Marijuana Regulations/Code Language Workshop.   Nancy Malone. Two packets and a map 

were provided to the commission showing areas in which the marijuana uses would be allowed.  

It also shows areas that have the 1000 foot buffer.  

  

Option 1.  There is added language to Chapter 17.15 for permitted uses and the table reflects 

where the collective gardens would be allowed in the light industrial and heavy industrial areas. 

This would be for collective gardens and producing and processing.  Retail would be allowed in 

the Commercial Town Center area and Commercial Special Retail area.  Chapter 17.45 would be 

new, titled Marijuana Related Land Uses.  It has a purpose section, location criteria for marijuana 

uses, business license, recreational marijuana and marijuana collective gardens allowed in 

identified zones, signs and advertising, security requirements, report of disturbances and unlawful 

activity, marijuana collective gardens, no non-conforming uses, and enforcement.  There are 

added definitions to Chapter 17.08.  The definitions are from the Washington State Liquor 

Control Board related to marijuana uses.  

 

Option 2.  Chapter  17.15 for permitted uses shows on the table where they are allowed.  Retail 

sales of marijuana would not be allowed in any commercial area.  It would only be allowed in the 

Light Industrial area under the Sexually Oriented Business (SOB) Overlay zone.  Nancy referred 

to map that identifies the only areas that would be allowed to grow marijuana.  Producing or 

processing it would be in the Heavy Industrial area.   

 

Nancy would like to have discussion on which one of the options the commission prefers.  Will 

take any questions or concerns the commission may have.  The city attorney, Janean Parker is 

also available to answer any questions.  Discussion followed. 

 

a. 1000 foot buffer is state mandated.   1000 foot buffer area cannot be shrunk.  1000 foot 

buffer may be able to be enlarged. 

b. Collective Gardens.  Per state regulations there is no personal growing of recreational 

marijuana.  Are there collective gardens in the city?  The city is not aware of any 

collective gardens within the city limits.  Once the code is adopted the city will be 



 

01/14/2014 Planning Commission Minutes  Page 2 of 3 

 

recognizing collective gardens and there will be an area that is designated where they can 

produce a collective garden.   

c. On the map the circles represent 1000 foot buffer.  

d. How would the marijuana affect the smoking within distance requirement?  You cannot 

smoke marijuana in a public area. 

e. The state is regulating marijuana; they have adopted their own statute.  The city is doing 

a local zoning for the particular things they are allowed to license for processing, 

manufacturing and retail.   

f. Manufacture, process and retail sales of marijuana.  Is the city required to zone for this?  

Can this be eliminated from Kelso all together? There is some risk if the city was to 

prohibit out right. 

g. Option 1 vs. Option 2 discussion.  250 foot buffer around residential zone, mobile or RV 

park in Option 1.  See proposed Chapter 17.45.020 B for exact proposed language. 

h. Has the state, county, city done any financial impact study?  Tax revenue? What about 

draw on services, police, fire?  This will need to be evaluated over time.  The only 

revenue the city would see from the retail side would be the city’s portion of the sales tax 

applied.   

i. Nancy wants the commission to remember this is just a workshop.  The  city is hoping to 

have a public hearing next month.  This is for the commission to give concerns or 

anything within the language that may need to be changed. 

j. Can both options be left open for public comment? The SEPA document would need to 

be revised.  It is possible to make recommendation to council to adopt one or two or leave 

it up to council. 

k. Chair VonRock asked those all in favor of Option 2 – Jared Wade, James Webb. 

l. Chair VonRock asked those all in favor of Option 1 – Clark Hislop, Rick VonRock. 

m. Producing and Processing commission prefers industrial. 

n. Retail – Allow in Commercial and Sexually Oriented Business Zone?  Option 2 is the 

staff recommended option. 

 City is allowed one retail business.  Any unclaimed licenses for County or 

Longview another retail business could come to Kelso. 

 Per state requirements you cannot have retail with producing and processing.  

 Chair VonRock asked by a raising of hands for Option 1 – Clark Hislop 

 Chair VonRock asked by a raising of hands for Option 2 – Rick VonRock, Jared 

Wade, James Webb. 

o. There are security requirements identified in the state law.  Proposed Chapter 17.45 sites 

WAC number. 

p. Commission Webb made a motion ‘that we not isolate one of these options yet.  That we 

get some public input before making that decision.’ 

q. City Manager, Steve Taylor, interjects suggesting the need to see a map with 250 foot 

buffer looks like with residential. 

r. There may be a push for conditional use or other kinds of permitting. Janean Parker 

recommends the city should not have an involved permitting process internally.  The city 

sets the rules, they (applicants) abide by the rules.  The city does not get involved in the 

details of the operation.  Rely on state conditions. 

s. Chair VonRock.  Can a third option be to include two (SOB and Commercial) for retail 

and residential 250 foot buffer. This would be a complete option for presenting.  This can 

be changed from what is heard from the public.   

t. Staff suggests collective gardens to be in industrial zoning. 

u. Nancy -  What she hears the Commission is wanting: 

 Producing processing and collective gardens in the light and heavy industrial 

areas. 



 

01/14/2014 Planning Commission Minutes  Page 3 of 3 

 

 Retail in the SOB area and possibly commercial area, but want to see a map that 

identifies the 250 feet from residential area within the commercial areas. 

v. Police department did receive a copy of both options. Chair VonRock asked if 

arrangements can be made for an officer to attend Public Hearing. 

 

2. Other Business:   

 

a. Demolition of old Sears building moving along. 

b. New McDonalds – progress is being made. 

c. Retail building off Minor Road is being worked on. 

d. Chair VonRock wanted passed on to the road department at the intersection of Minor 

Road & 7
th
 two large pot holes. 

 

 

Adjournment: 

 

There being no further business, Commissioner VonRock made the motion seconded by 

Commissioner Webb to adjourn at 7:16pm. 

 

 

        

Rick VonRock, Planning Commission Chair 

 

 

        

Respectfully submitted:  

Stephanie L. Helem, Recording Secretary  



Publish:  The Daily News January 29, 2014 
 

PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE 
 

 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that an open record public hearing is scheduled before the 

Kelso Planning Commission, Tuesday, February 11, 2014 at 6:00pm in the City Hall 

Council Chambers, 201 S Pacific Avenue, Kelso, WA 98626. 

 

The Kelso Community Development Department has submitted an application, on behalf 

of the City of Kelso to make certain amendments to the City’s Zoning Ordinance, Title 

17, by adding a new Chapter 17.45 Marijuana Related Land Uses. Amendments to 

Chapter 17.08 (definitions), Chapter 17.15 (land use table) and Chapter 17.30 (overlay 

zone). The proposed new chapter will establish where recreational marijuana producers, 

processors and retail outlets and marijuana collective gardens may locate in the city, and 

describe the restrictions upon such uses.  It prohibits marijuana uses in Residential zones 

or in structures used residentially. 

 

The hearing will allow the city to receive comments on the proposed text amendments. If 

you have any questions, please contact Nancy Malone, Kelso Community Development 

Planning Manager at (360) 423-9922.  Be sure to reference file no. ZON13-002/SEP13-

012.  

 

The Council Chambers room is handicap accessible.  Arrangements to reasonably 

accommodate special needs, including handicap accessibility or interpreter, will be made 

upon receiving 24-hour advance notice.  Contact the City Clerks Office at (360) 423-

0900. 

 

 

 

 

 

 
















































































































